# MINUTES CITY COUNCIL MEETING CITY OF FARMINGTON HILLS SEPTEMBER 26 – 7:30 PM CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBER

The regular meeting of the Farmington Hills City Council was called to order by Mayor Massey at 7:30 p.m.

Council Members Present: Bruce, Knol, Lerner, Massey, Rich and Steckloff

Council Members Absent: Bridges

Others Present: City Manager Boyer, City Clerk Smith, Assistant City Manager Mekjian,

Directors Gardiner and Mondora and City Attorney Joppich

#### PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Karen Mondora, Director of Public Services, led the pledge of allegiance.

#### APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor Massey mentioned a correction to item #7 of the Consent Agenda. The first vendor mentioned should be St. Regis Culvert, Inc. of Charlotte Michigan and not Jensen Bridge and Supply Company.

MOTION by Rich, support by Steckloff, to approve the agenda as amended.

MOTION CARRIED 6-0.

## COMMISSION FOR ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY TIP OF THE MONTH

The following Tip of the Month was read by Councilmember Bruce:

## Commission for Energy and Environmental Sustainability Tip of the Month

This past month, Farmington Hills joined other RRRASOC communities in helping to reduce household waste through a new program from Simple Recycling. Farmington Hills residents are now able to recycle textiles and other household items through a weekly pickup at the curbside. Currently, 85% of textiles are not recycled or donated, and household items and clothing account for 15% of the landfill waste stream.

Simple Recycling is free and convenient. Each week, residents have the opportunity to recycle items such as clothing and accessories, small household appliances, toys, tools, and more. Residents must put these items inside the green Simple Recycling bag and place it out at the curbside on their regular garbage pickup day. When a bag is taken, a new bag will be left in its place.

Once collected, the items are sorted and graded by condition. Top quality materials are sold to local thrift stores, while items deemed not resalable in the U.S. are exported as second-hand clothing. The remainder is recycled into rags, fiber for home insulation, carpet padding, and textile applications in the automotive industry.

Page 2

City Council Regular Meeting September 26, 2016

The Simple Recycling program is not an alternative to donating. Residents are still encouraged to donate clothing and other household items that are in good condition to local organizations. For more information, please visit www.simplerecycling.com.

## PRESENTATION OF BREAST CANCER AWARENESS SHIRTS TO CITY COUNCIL BY THE FIRE DEPARTMENT

Fire Chief Jon Unruh stated that the Farmington Hills Fire Department had developed a program to raise awareness and highlight Breast Cancer Awareness Month. Last year the Firefighters wore pink surgical gloves during the month of October and this year, a couple of firefighters designed a shirt that all firefighters will wear during October. Chief Unruh introduced John Kastran, President of the Farmington Hills Firefighters Association to discuss the program.

Mr. Kastran discussed the process for designing the shirts and commented that breast cancer has affected most families in some way and this was an opportunity for the Fire Department to raise awareness and also raise money for the cause. He indicated that the shirts were sold at various events and will be sold at the upcoming Fire Department Open House on Friday, October 7<sup>th</sup> from 3-7pm. The sales have been very successful so far and the shirts are being sold for \$15 (\$9 to cover the cost of the shirt and \$6 being donated for breast cancer awareness).

The newly designed shirts were presented to the Mayor and Council and staff by the Firefighters.

## PRESENTATION OF CITY ACCREDITATION BY AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS ASSOCIATION

Tom Trice, Past President of the APWA, spoke of the work of the Public Services Department and stated that this Accreditation is a mark of professionalism and shows a commitment to continuous improvement to services provided. He explained that Accreditation recognizes that an agencies policies, procedures and practices have been evaluated against nationally recognized best management practices determined to be appropriate for that specific agency. He discussed the evaluation process by the APWA and stated that they would be awarding full accreditation to the Department. Mr. Trice stated that re-accreditation is required every 4 years.

Karen Mondora, Director of Public Services, acknowledged Assistant City Manager Gary Mekjian, the former Department Director, who led the Department on this matter and recognized staff that was part of the accreditation team.

Mr. Trice presented a plaque to Mayor Massey noting that Farmington Hills was only the 2<sup>nd</sup> City in the State to become accredited and sets a benchmark for other communities.

Mayor Massey spoke of the professionalism of the Department and Mayor and Council congratulated the Department on a job well done.

#### **CORRESPONDENCE**

There was no correspondence.

#### **CONSENT AGENDA**

MOTION by Lerner, support by Bruce, to approve the Consent Agenda with the revision to Item #7 previously mentioned.

City Council Regular Meeting September 26, 2016 Page 3

Roll Call Vote:

Yeas: BRUCE, KNOL, LERNER, MASSEY, RICH AND STECKLOFF

Nays: NONE Absent: BRIDGES Abstentions: NONE

MOTION CARRIED 6-0.

#### **PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS**

Mayor Massey acknowledged a letter from Mr. Kenneth Polk, Montpelier Ct., who is experiencing issues with his well associated with the Middlebelt Tunnel Project.

Dan McRoberts, Greencastle, commented that he is upset with the information that has been passed on to residents of Greencastle Subdivision through the Water Resource Commission on this issue. He expressed concern over sulfur smelling water and black soot they are experiencing and mentioned that two more residents are now having water issues. He urged Council to resolve these issues and noted that the majority of the people present this evening were from Greencastle Subdivision regarding this same issue.

City Manager Boyer mentioned that the City has invited Water Resource Commissioner Nash to the October 10, 2016 regular City Council meeting to discuss this issue.

Darrin Griffith, Greencastle, stated that it has been said that this is not a City issue, but he feels it is. None of the residents are able to sell or refinance their homes without water and he believes the homes currently have a taxable value of \$0 due to that. He stated that the City approved the project and there was no notification to the neighborhoods along Middlebelt. He stated that it has been almost a year that they have been dealing with this issue and 3-4 months since his water was tested with still no results. He stated that he feels he is getting the run-around from the Oakland County Health Department and Water Resource Commission. He appreciated what the City has done so far to assist the residents but he believes the issue has been passed on to the insurance company that the county has for the project.

Troy Anderson, Greencastle Subdivision, stated that he paid his taxes several weeks ago and fears that the city is now not supporting him. He received a letter indicating that the testing he wanted done was not covered and would cost approximately \$346. He stated that he has allergies to sulfur and met with WRC Nash a few weeks ago and an attorney representing the insurance company asked for his well and a few others to be tested. The testing occurred 2 weeks ago and he was told it would take 4-6 weeks for results. He expressed concern that the project would not be completed until January and asked if the City will support him on this issue.

Greg Roller, Greenmeadow Circle, expressed his aggravation and frustration over the water issue and not having water for over 2 weeks. He stated that no temporary tank has been offered, only bottled water at this time. He was concerned that WRC did not know to begin with how deep the wells were in that area and feels that they did not care and has had an attitude with the residents. He commented that his well was open for 2 months.

There were no further comments from the public.

Councilmember Lerner encouraged those residents still experiencing issue with their wells or water to send a quick email to the City Clerk so the City knew of all of the concerns. He commented that Council

City Council Regular Meeting September 26, 2016 Page 4

absolutely does care. He stated that WRC designed the project and Council had no choice in the matter. He noted that many members of Council visited the neighborhood and WRC will be attending the next regular meeting to further discuss this issue. Mr. Lerner added that while they cannot change what has already happened, they are hoping to get the best possible outcome for the residents.

Mayor Massey clarified that while the Council voted to approve the project, it was presented to Council as such that it was a project that had to be done. There was not an opportunity for Council to turn this project down.

Councilmember Steckloff added that this project was done per a court order in the area, but she feels even more residents are coming forward than Council knew were affected. She inquired if Council has any recourse.

City Attorney Joppich replied that Council is doing what it can at this time and communicating with WRC to address the situation. He stated that there have been meetings at the administration level at which many the attorney's office was represented.

Mayor Pro-Tem Knol assured the residents that Council is frustrated over this issue. This project is under the jurisdiction of the WRC per a consent agreement with the State whereby the State ordered the County to design a project to handle the sanitary sewer overflow (SSO). She stated that there obviously have been issues with the project and Council questioned Mr. Nash and WRC on those issues and she feels they were hearing differently than what the residents are saying tonight.

Councilmember Bruce stated that he was surprised when they were told how few soil borings were taken at the start of the project and he also feels that WRC has had an attitude and he is not happy with how the project has been handled. He stated that he will not be satisfied until all of the residents have clean water.

Councilmember Rich applauded the residents for coming out to speak to Council on this issue and she wants them to know that they have been heard. She stated that the number one role of government was to keep people safe and she appreciates the city staff working with the county to try and resolve the issues and to make sure they have clean water to drink. She suggested that the residents come together to consolidate their concerns and issues to make sure that all issues are heard the evening of October 10<sup>th</sup>.

City Manager Boyer suggested that all concerns or questions are submitted to the City by way of email to the City Clerk so that they can provide those to the Water Resource Commission ahead of time and hopefully have some answers for the residents.

Mayor Massey assured the residents that they are not walking away from this issue He inquired about the taxable value of the property as mentioned by one of the residents.

Attorney Joppich stated that taxable value is reviewed on an annual basis by a review board and that would be the appropriate body to answer those questions. He confirmed that there is a mechanism for review and it would be that board.

Mayor Massey stated that every member of Council takes this issue very seriously and they hear the frustration and anger. He stated that this is not only an issue with the wells but a major road has been closed for months, which has created traffic concerns and cut-through traffic in subdivisions. Council will be asking for an explanation of why these issues have occurred, how the issues including water quality will be addressed and when. He added that this issue has been a topic of conversation at his

City Council Regular Meeting September 26, 2016 Page 5

weekly meeting with the City Manager for months and city staff has taken action but are also frustrated with the response. He explained that these are the reasons that they invited Commissioner Nash to a meeting and they need to get the road open and to get the residents clean water. He assured the residents that Council will continue to fight this issue on their behalf.

#### COUNCIL MEMBER'S COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Councilmember Steckloff mentioned that her final treatment for breast cancer is Thursday. A friend of hers who is only 32 years old and was diagnosed at the same time just found out she is terminal. he commented on the importance of cancer awareness and early detection and thanked the Fire Department for their program. She thanked the community, Mayor and Council and staff for their support in getting her through this difficult time. She noted the following programs:

- October 14<sup>th</sup> there will be free mammograms and ultrasounds at St. Joe's Hospital and Gilda's Club of Royal Oak is the sponsor. Call 866-246-4673 for more information
- October 1<sup>st</sup> is the *Bras for a Cause* event in which she will be participating at the Royal Oak Music Theater at 6pm to support breast cancer awareness.

#### Councilmember Rich commented on the following:

- Community dialogue she attended Religion and Diversity, which she felt created a very powerful discussion. She noted that the next dialogue is to be held at Birmingham Temple on Leadership and Diversity.
- Her next Sunday Walk & Talk will be held October 9<sup>th</sup> at the Farmington Branch Library at 9:30am.

#### Mayor Massey mentioned the following:

- Acknowledged the decorated phones on display in the lobby, which was a project of the teens of
  the library in support of mental health issues and suicide to represent that someone is always a
  call away.
- Farmington SAFE is holding their next community conversation on October 6, 2016 on Bi-Polar disease to be held at the Detroit Public Television in Novi and to be followed by a panel discussion. He noted that this will be filmed and then broadcast nationally and invited the community to attend
- October 11<sup>th</sup> is the last day to register to vote for the November 8, 2016 General Election
- Voters who have requested an absentee ballot to be mailed, those ballots will be mailed out by October 7<sup>th</sup>.

#### **CITY MANAGER UPDATE**

City Manager Boyer provided the following update:

- The Costick Center will be closed October 10-17 in order to replace a water main
- Water Resource Commissioner Nash will be present at the October 10<sup>th</sup> regular City Council meeting to discuss the issues brought up this evening
- Hazardous Waste Day is October 1st at the Novi location and RRRASOC in Southfield

#### **NEW BUSINESS**

## CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF RENEWAL OF THE UNIFORM VIDEO SERVICE LOCAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WITH MICHIGAN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY D/B/A AT&T MICHIGAN.

City Attorney Joppich explained that the renewal of the franchise agreement before Council would allow AT&T to locate cable within the right-of-way in the community. He noted that several other agreements have recently come before Council and were approved. He stated that this is a 10-year renewal under the

City Council Regular Meeting September 26, 2016 Page 6

Act and the agreement provides for payment of the franchise and PEG fees. The agreement was submitted to the City on September 7, 2016 and the City has 30 days in which to Act on the request. He noted that a resolution has been provided for Council consideration this evening.

#### STATE OF MICHIGAN COUNTY OF OAKLAND CITY OF FARMINGTON HILLS

### $\frac{R-152-16}{\text{RESOLUTION APPROVING RENEWAL}}$

## UNIFORM VIDEO SERVICE LOCAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WITH MICHIGAN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY, D/B/A AT&T, MICHIGAN

At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Farmington Hills ("City"), County of Oakland, State of Michigan, held in the City Council Chambers on September 26, 2016, at 7:30 PM, with those present and absent being:

PRESENT: BRUCE, KNOL, LERNER, MASSEY, RICH AND STECKLOFF

ABSENT: BRIDGES

the following preamble and Resolution were offered by Councilperson Bruce and supported by Councilperson Rich.

WHEREAS, under Public Act 480 of 2006, the Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Act (the "Act"), on April 26, 2007, the City approved a Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement ("Video Franchise") with Michigan Bell Telephone Company, d/b/a AT&T Michigan ("AT&T"), for a period of ten (10) years; and

WHEREAS, on September 7, 2016, AT&T applied to the City for the renewal of the Video Franchise allowed by Section 3 of the Act, by the submission of the attached Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement ("Renewed Agreement"), that has been reviewed and determined by the City Attorney to be complete under the Act; and

WHEREAS, the 5% of gross revenue annual video service provider fee in Section VI.A, and 2% of gross revenue PEG fee in Section VIII.A of the Renewed Agreement are the same as those fees under the City's Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreements with Comcast of Colorado/Florida/Michigan/New Mexico/Pennsylvania/Washington, LLC, and Bright House Networks, LLC, as required by Section 6 of the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Council has accepted that the Renewal Agreement is complete and meets the technical requirements of the Act, understands that there has been no change in the law since 2007 when Video Franchise was required to be approved, that provides the City with denial or conditional approval authority, and therefore undertakes to adopt this Resolution approving the Renewed Agreement as required by the Act.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City finds that the Renewal Agreement is complete and meets the technical requirements of the Act, and solely for that reason, and not because the City agrees with or assents to any provisions of the Act or the Renewal Agreement, the City hereby approves and authorizes and directs the Mayor to sign the Renewal Agreement and its Attachment 1, as a renewal of the April 26, 2007, Franchise Agreement.

City Council Regular Meeting September 26, 2016 Page 7

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that notwithstanding that the term of the 2007 Franchise Agreement has not expired, the term of the Renewal Agreement shall be ten (10) years from the date of this approval.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that on page 9 of the Renewal Agreement, the "Date submitted" shall be completed by insertion of September 7, 2016, with the "Date completed and approved" to be completed by inserting September 26, 2016, and that the following language shall be inserted below the "Date completed and approved;" line:

Determination of completeness and approval and authority for this Franchise Agreement to be signed, was by adoption of a Resolution by the City Council at a meeting on September 26, 2016.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that by approving the Renewal Agreement, the City shall not be found to have waived its rights to challenge any provisions of the Act and/or any related provisions of the Renewal Agreement, including AT&T's confidential designation of the video service area footprint map that is part of Attachment 1, on the basis that such provisions are invalid and unenforceable as violations of law, including on the grounds that a particular action is an unconstitutional impairment of contractual rights, with the City further reserving any and all rights stemming from any successful challenge to such provisions undertaken by any other local franchising entity.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk shall provide a copy of this Resolution to AT&T by one of the methods for Notice in Section XV of the Franchise.

AYES: BRUCE, KNOL, LERNER, MASSEY, RICH AND STECKLOFF

NAYES: NONE ABSENT: BRIDGES ABSTENTIONS: NONE

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED September 26, 2016.

## CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT FOR COMPLETION AND MAINTENANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS WITH FOREST AT WOODDALE LLC; OPEN SPACE PLAN 1, 2015.

Director Gardiner explained that on February 8, 2016 City Council granted preliminary plan approval for this development on the former Wooddale School property. He noted that the approval included the requirement of a development agreement, which is before the City Council this evening for consideration. He added that performance guarantees have been submitted and the City Attorney's Office has reviewed the proposed agreement

Councilmember Lerner inquired about the changes in open space since the plan was approved by Council. Director Gardiner stated that there have been a few minor changes to the open space plan. He noted there would be 18 fewer trees within the open space area, but the developer is providing the city with that funding in return to plant trees where the city deems suitable.

MOTION by Knol, support by Lerner, that the City Council of Farmington Hills hereby approves the Agreement for Completion and Maintenance of Improvements with Forest at Wooddale LLC; Open Space Plan 1, 2015.

City Council Regular Meeting September 26, 2016

MOTION CARRIED 6-0.

Page 8

City Council Regular Meeting September 26, 2016 Page 9

#### **CONSENT AGENDA**

RECOMMENDED APPROVAL OF AWARD OF BID FOR CULVERT PIPE TO ST. REGIS CULVERT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$40,000.00 PER YEAR FOR 16-GAUGE ALUMINIZED STEEL PIPE AND PARTS, AND AWARD OF BID TO ADVANCED DRAINAGE SYSTEM IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$15,000.00 PER YEAR FOR N-12 PLASTIC PIPE AND PARTS; WITH POSSIBLE EXTENSIONS. CMR 9-16-105

MOTION by Lerner, support by Bruce, that the City Council of Farmington Hills hereby authorizes the City Manager to issue a purchase order to St. Regis Culvert, Inc. of Charlotte, Michigan, for an amount not-to-exceed \$40,000.00 per year, with possible extensions for the purchase of 16-gauge aluminized steel pipe and parts; and

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that City Council authorizes the City Manager to issue a purchase order to Advanced Drainage System of Linden, Michigan, for an amount not-to-exceed \$15,000.00 per year, with possible extensions for the purchase of N-012 plastic pipe and parts.

#### Roll Call Vote:

Yeas: BRUCE, KNOL, LERNER, MASSEY, RICH AND STECKLOFF

Nays: NONE Absent: BRIDGES Abstentions: NONE

MOTION CARRIED 6-0

## RECOMMENDED APPROVAL OF AWARD OF BID FOR ANTI-ICING FLUID TO CHLORIDE SOLUTIONS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$55,200.00; WITH POSSIBLE EXTENSIONS. CMR 9-16-106

MOTION by Lerner, support by Bruce, that the City Council of Farmington Hills hereby authorizes the City Manager to issue a purchase order to Chloride Solutions in the amount not to exceed \$55,200.00 for anti-icing fluid, with extensions.

#### Roll Call Vote:

Yeas: BRUCE, KNOL, LERNER, MASSEY, RICH AND STECKLOFF

Nays: NONE Absent: BRIDGES Abstentions: NONE

MOTION CARRIED 6-0

CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF AN UPDATED PERFORMANCE RESOLUTION FOR CITY PROJECTS IN THE MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (MDOT) RIGHT-OF-WAY. CMR 9-16-107

City Council Regular Meeting September 26, 2016 Page 10

R-156-16

Michigan Department Of Transportation 2207B (10/14)

### PERFORMANCE RESOLUTION FOR GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES

Page 1 of 2

This Performance Resolution is required by the Michigan Department of Transportation for purposes of issuing to a municipality an "Individual Permit for Use of State Highway Right of Way" or an "Annual Application and Permit for "Miscellaneous Operations Within: State Highway Right of Way".

RESOLVED WHEREAS, the	City of Farmington Hills	
	(city, village, township, etc.)	

hereinafter referred to as the "GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY," periodically applies to the Michigan Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT," for permits, referred to as "PERMIT," to construct, operate, use and/or maintain utility or other facilities, or to conduct other activities, on, over, and under State Highway right of way at various locations within and adjacent to its corporate limits;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the DEPARTMENT granting such PERMIT, the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY agrees that:

- Each party to this Agreement shall remain responsible for any claims arising out of their own acts and/or omissions during the performance of this Agreement, as provided by law. This Agreement is not intended to increase either party's liability for, or immunity from, tort claims, nor shall it be interpreted, as giving either party hereto a right of indemnification, either by Agreement or at law, for claims arising out of the performance of this Agreement.
- 2. Any work performed for the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as a contractor for the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY and not as a contractor or agent of the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors and contractors of the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY, or their subcontractors or any other person not a party to the PERMIT without its specific prior written consent and notwithstanding the issuance of the PERMIT. Any claims by any contractor or subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY.
- 3. The GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or indirectly out of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the PERMIT which results in claims being asserted against or judgment being imposed against the State of Michigan, the Michigan Transportation Commission, the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents and employees thereof and those contracting governmental bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all officers, agents, and employees thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event that the same occurs for the purposes of the PERMIT, it will be considered as a breach of the PERMIT thereby giving the State of Michigan, the DEPARTMENT, and/or the Michigan Transportation Commission a right to seek and obtain any necessary relief or remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages.
  - 4. The GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY It will, by its own volition and/or request by the DEPARTMENT, promptly restore and/or correct physical or operating damages to any State Highway Right of Way resulting from the installation construction, operation and/or maintenance of the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY'S facilities according to a PERMIT issued by the DEPARTMENT.
  - 5. With respect to any activities authorized by PERMIT, when the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY requires insurance on its own or its contractor's behalf it shall also require that such policy include as named insured the State of Michigan, the Transportation Commission, the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents, and employees thereof and those governmental bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all officers, agents, and employees thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract.

City Council Regular Meeting September 26, 2016 Page 11

MDOT 2207B (10/14) Page 2 of 2

- The incorporation by the DEPARTMENT of this resolution as part of a PERMIT does not prevent he DEPARTMENT from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance of a PERMIT.
- 7. This resolution shall continue in force from this date until cancelled by the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY or the DEPARTMENT with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party. It will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY with regard to any PERMIT which has already been issued or activity which has already been undertaken.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following position(s) are authorized to apply to the DEPARTMENT for the necessary permit to work within State Highway Right of Way on behalf of the GCVERNMENTAL AGENCY.

	Karen Mondora, P.E	., Director of Public S	Services	
NAME AND/OR TITLE	James, Cubera, P.E	., City Engineer		2.2 -1
	Kevin McCarthy, P.	E., DPW Superinted	ant	
153				
	. 1 44			19
I HEREBY CERTI	FY that the foregoing is	a true copy of a resolut	ion adopted by	
the City Cou	ıncil		Vi	
of the <u>City of Fa</u>		of	Oakland Cou	nty
(Name ataRegular	of GOVERNMENTAL AGENC	v) meeting held on ti	(County	0
of September	A.D. 2016			t i see of store t i see of see
SIGNATUR	1/	ity Clerk	PRINT NAME P	amela B. Smith

## RECOMMENDED APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR EMPLOYMENT UNDER SECTION 10.01A OF THE CITY CODE.

MOTION by Lerner, support by Bruce, that the City Council of Farmington Hills hereby approves the request for employment under Section 10.01A of the City Code for Hannah Vertin as a Skate Instructor On-Ice/Ice Arena Attendant for the Special Services Department. Hannah Vertin is related to Liz Laburn, who is a Skate Instructor On-Ice in the Special Services Department.

City Council Regular Meeting September 26, 2016 Page 12

Roll Call Vote:

Yeas: BRUCE, KNOL, LERNER, MASSEY, RICH AND STECKLOFF

Nays: NONE Absent: BRIDGES Abstentions: NONE

MOTION CARRIED 6-0

## RECOMMENDED APPROVAL OF THE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 12, 2016.

MOTION by Lerner, support by Bruce, that the City Council of Farmington Hills hereby approves the regular meeting minutes of September 12, 2016 as submitted.

Roll Call Vote:

Yeas: BRUCE, KNOL, LERNER, MASSEY, RICH AND STECKLOFF

Nays: NONE Absent: BRIDGES Abstentions: NONE

MOTION CARRIED 6-0.

#### **ADJOURNMENT**

The City Council meeting was adjourned at 8:53p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Pamela B. Smith, City Clerk